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To: Commission 

From: Jonathan Wayne, Executive Director 

Date: October 23, 2019 

Re: Request to Investigate Contributions made by the Gideon Leadership PAC 

________________________________________________________________________ 

 

On August 22, 2019, the Maine Commission on Governmental Ethics and Election 

Practices (“Commission”) received the attached request for investigation from Edward 

Youngblood concerning six contributions made by the Gideon Leadership political action 

committee (“PAC”) in 2015-2016.  (Youngblood request letter, at ETH-17 – ETH-110)  

The committee is the leadership PAC of State Rep. Sara Gideon, currently the Speaker of 

the Maine House of Representatives.  Two of the contributions were to Maine-based 

PACs and the other four contributions were to a federal candidate and political 

committee. 

 

Public filings suggest that Rep. Gideon made the six contributions with her own money 

and was later reimbursed by the Gideon Leadership PAC.  When the recipient 

committees filed campaign finance reports with the Commission and the Federal Election 

Commission (“FEC”), they reported receiving the contributions from Sara Gideon, rather 

than from the Gideon Leadership PAC.  Mr. Youngblood asserts that this arrangement 

violated Maine campaign finance law because the Gideon Leadership PAC made 

contributions “in the name of another, Sara Gideon.”  (ETH-20)  In addition, he alleges 

that the contributions violated federal campaign finance law.  He has filed a separate 

complaint with the FEC, which will consider the federal compliance issues in due course. 

 

Sara Gideon responds that when she made the contributions (more than three years ago), 

she believed in good faith that her payments and the PAC’s reimbursements were 

permissible.  (Gideon response, at ETH-119)  At that time, she was in her second term as 
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a State Representative and first term as the assistant leader of her caucus.  She explains 

that upon learning of potential federal compliance issues, she took prompt remedial 

action by personally paying the amount of the PAC’s reimbursements to the U.S. 

Treasury.  (ETH-118) 

 

Based on the information preliminarily available, it is difficult for the Commission staff 

to see how an investigation would lead to a determination that the Gideon Leadership 

PAC committed the legal violation of “making contributions in the name of another.”  

We believe this violation is intended to apply to situations where it is demonstrated that a 

contributor intends to remain concealed by contributing through an intermediary or 

conduit.  This case is different because the Gideon Leadership PAC clearly intended to 

report the contributions in its own name in campaign finance reports filed with this 

Commission.  For all six contributions, the Gideon Leadership PAC publicly reported 

that it had reimbursed Sara Gideon for the contributions.  Accordingly, the staff 

recommends against conducting any campaign finance or legislative ethics investigation 

as requested, but we will gladly undertake any direction the Commission determines to be 

appropriate. 

 

We acknowledge, however, that some of the reporting by the Maine PACs in this matter 

could have painted a clearer picture of the payments and reimbursements.  We presume 

that Sara Gideon did not inform the two recipient Maine-based PACs (the House 

Democratic Campaign Committee and the Golden Leadership Fund) that the funds she 

was donating originated with her leadership PAC, and not from her personal funds.  If 

she had made this communication, these two PACs hopefully would have reported the 

Gideon Leadership PAC as the contributor, rather than Sara Gideon.  This lack of 

communication was not illegal, but it may have contributed to unclear reporting.  Also, 

when the Gideon Leadership PAC reported reimbursing Sara Gideon, it could have more 

clearly identified the federal candidate and committee that ultimately received three of 

the six contributions.  While their financial reporting could have been clearer, we believe 

the Maine PACs substantially complied with current Maine law and published 

Commission guidance and should not be viewed as “contributing in the name of another.” 
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Relevant Law 

 

Standard for opening a requested investigation 

The Election Law authorizes the Commission to receive requests for investigation and to 

conduct an investigation “if the reasons stated for the request show sufficient grounds for 

believing that a violation may have occurred.” 

A person may apply in writing to the commission requesting an 

investigation as described in subsection 1. The commission shall review 

the application and shall make the investigation if the reasons stated for 

the request show sufficient grounds for believing that a violation may have 

occurred. 

(21-A M.R.S. § 1003(2)) (ETH-1) 

 

Commission jurisdiction – state candidate elections only 

The Commission does not have jurisdiction over contributions to federal candidates and 

political committees: 

This subchapter applies to candidates for all state and county offices and 

to campaigns for their nomination and election. Candidates for municipal 

office as described in Title 30-A, section 2502, subsection 1 are also 

governed by this subchapter. The commission does not have jurisdiction 

over financial activities to influence the nomination or election of 

candidates for federal office. 

(21-A M.R.S. § 1011) (ETH-12)  

 

Financial reporting 

Under Maine campaign finance law, candidates for state office, political action 

committees, and party committees are required to report all contributions they have 

received above certain monetary thresholds, including the name and address of the 

contributor and the date and amount of the contribution.  (21-A M.R.S. §§ 1017(5), 

1017-A(1) & 1060(6))  Accurate reporting of contributors assists members of the public 

to understand the actual sources of contributions received by candidates and committees.  
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Accurate contributor reporting is also important to verify compliance with contribution 

limits and other legal requirements. 

 

Making a contribution in the name of another 

Maine campaign finance law makes it a Class E crime to knowingly make a contribution 

in the name of another person or to allow one’s name to be used for this purpose: 

The violation of any of the following subsections is a Class E crime. … 

3. Contributions in another's name.  A person may not knowingly: 

A. Make a contribution in the name of another person; 

B.  Permit the person's name to be used to accomplish a contribution in 

violation of paragraph A; or 

C.  Accept a contribution made by one person in the name of another 

person. … 

(21-A M.R.S. § 1004(3)) (ETH-10)  The conduct may also result in civil penalties: 

A person that makes a contribution in the name of another person, or that 

knowingly accepts a contribution made by one person in the name of another 

person, may be assessed a penalty not to exceed $5,000.   

(21-A M.R.S. § 1004-A(3)) (ETH-11) 

 

Giving a contribution through an intermediary or conduit 

If a person (either an individual or association) gives money to an intermediary or conduit 

for the purpose of contributing it to a candidate, the intermediary or conduit is required 

by statute to disclose the original source of the contribution to the candidate so that the 

candidate may report the original source as the contributor.  (21-A M.R.S. § 1015(4))  

(ETH-12)  This provision was written in the law governing contributions to candidates to 

avoid circumvention of contribution limits.  No similar provision exists in the law 

governing contributions to PACs and ballot question committees.   

 

Legislative ethics 

In 1 M.R.S. §§ 1001-1051, the Maine Legislature established a legislative ethics law, 

which, among other things, defines certain acts of misconduct as a “violation of 
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legislative ethics.” The term “violations of legislative ethics” is defined 1 M.R.S. § 

1012(10) to mean “a violation of the prohibitions in section 1014 or 1015.”  (ETH-1)  

These violations include: 

 conflicts of interest (1 M.R.S. § 1014(1)) 

 unduly influencing a Maine state agency or authority (1 M.R.S. § 1014(2-A)) 

 abuse of office or position (1 M.R.S. § 1014(3)) 

 contracting with a state governmental agency without competitive bidding (1 

M.R.S. § 1014(4)) 

 receiving campaign contributions from lobbyists or their clients during a 

legislative session (1 M.R.S. § 1015(3)) 

(ETH-5 – ETH-8).  

 

In 1 M.R.S. § 1013, the Maine Legislature set out strict procedures by which the 

Commission may receive complaints of violations of legislative ethics.  A person may 

file a complaint against a Legislator alleging a violation of legislative ethics only as 

described in sections 1014 and 1015.  (1 M.R.S. § 1013(2)(B-1)) (ETH-1)  The 

Commission may only consider activity by a Legislator that occurred or was ongoing 

within two years of the filing of the complaint.  (1 M.R.S. § 1013(2)(B-1)(2)) (ETH-2)   

The complainant must keep the complaint confidential unless the Commission decides to 

pursue the complaint.  (1 M.R.S. § 1013(2)(B-1)) (ETH-2, ETH-4) 

 
Reported Contributions 

 

Contributions Reported by the Recipient Committees 

Mr. Youngblood alleges that the Gideon Leadership PAC made six contributions in the 

name of Sara Gideon.  The details of the transactions, as reported by the recipient 

committees in campaign finance reports, are shown on the table on the next page.  (The 

Commission staff has not verified the payment dates and amounts.)  To see the actual 

pages from the relevant campaign finance reports, please refer to exhibits B-G of Mr. 

Youngblood’s request.  (The page numbers are noted in the table.)  The recipient 
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committees apparently received the payments directly from Sara Gideon, and then 

reported her as the contributor. 

 

Contributions as Reported by Recipient Committees 

Recipient Committee 
Reported 

Date 
Reported 
Amount 

Reported 
Contributor 

Agency 
Receiving 
Campaign 

Finance 
Report 

Cain for Congress  
(ETH-29 – ETH-31) 9/30/15 $1,000.00 Sara I Gideon FEC 

Cain for Congress  
(ETH-33 – ETH-35) 6/13/16 $250.00 Sara I Gideon FEC 

House Democratic Campaign 
Committee  
(ETH-37 – ETH-47) 

8/3/16 $250.00 Sara Gideon 
Maine Ethics 
Commission 

Golden Leadership Fund 
(ETH-49 – ETH-56) 6/25/16 $250.00 Sara Gideon 

Maine Ethics 
Commission 

Maine Democratic State Committee 
(Federal account)  
(ETH-58 – ETH-60) 

7/11/16 $1,000.00 Sara I. Gideon FEC 

Maine Democratic State Committee 
(Federal account)  
(ETH-62 – ETH-64) 

10/3/16 $500.00 Sara I. Gideon FEC 

 
 
To clarify the nature of these four recipient committees: 

 In 2015-2016, Emily Cain was engaged in her second campaign for U.S. 

Representative for the second congressional district in Maine.  Contributions to 

her campaign were subject to federal campaign finance laws.  She filed campaign 

finance reports with the FEC. 

 The House Democratic Campaign Committee is a Maine-based PAC established 

to promote Democratic nominees to the Maine House of Representatives.  It files 

campaign finance reports with the Commission. 

 The Golden Leadership Fund was a leadership PAC established by then-State 

Representative Jared Golden.  The PAC filed campaign finance reports with the 
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Commission for about two years until Rep. Golden terminated the PAC in 

November 2017. 

 The federal account of the Maine Democratic State committee is a separate bank 

account established by the Maine Democratic Party to promote candidates in 

federal elections and engage in other permissible activities.  Below in this memo, 

I refer to this account as the “MDP federal account.”  Contributions to this 

account must comply with federal law.  The MDP federal account files campaign 

finance reports with the FEC. 

 

Reimbursements Reported by Gideon Leadership PAC 

The Gideon Leadership PAC is a Maine PAC which registered with the Commission in 

May 2014.  (ETH-24 – ETH-27)  Sara Gideon was the principal officer of the PAC, until 

she dissolved it in June 2019.  In campaign finance reports filed with the Commission, 

the Gideon Leadership PAC disclosed the following payments, and described the purpose 

of the payments as a reimbursement to Sara Gideon for contributions: 

 

Reported Payee 
Reported 

Date 
Reported 
Amount 

Reported 
Explanation of 

Purpose 

Sara Gideon  
(ETH-31) 

10/28/15 $1,000.00
Reimbursement for 
federal contribution 

Emily Cain for 
Congress  
(ETH-35) 

6/1/16 $250.00
Contribution - 
Reimbursement to 
Sara Gideon 

House Democratic 
Campaign Committee 
(ETH-38) 

6/1/16 $250.00
Contribution - 
Reimbursement to 
Sara Gideon 

Golden Leadership 
Fund 
(ETH-50) 

6/27/16 $250.00
Contribution - 
Reimbursement to 
Sara Gideon 

Sara Gideon 
(ETH-60) 

7/25/16 $1,000.00
Reimbursement for 
MDP contribution 

Sara Gideon 
(ETH-64) 

10/12/16 $500.00
Reimbursement for 
contribution 
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Violations Alleged by Mr. Youngblood 

 

Alleged violation of state election law.  Mr. Youngblood asserts that the Gideon 

Leadership PAC violated 21-A M.R.S. § 1004(3)(A) by contributing in the name of 

another, Sara Gideon.  The allegation is summed up in the first full paragraph on the 

fourth page of his letter: 

As such, there can be no question that the PAC and not Sara Gideon was 

the true contributor to committees in question and that Gideon Leadership 

PAC made a contribution in the name of another, Sara Gideon, in direct 

violation of the giving in another’s name prohibition at Me. Rev. Stat. tit. 

21-A, § 1004(3)(A).   

(ETH-20) 

 

Mr. Youngblood also claims Sara Gideon violated 21-A M.R.S. § 1004(3)(B) by 

allowing her name to be used in the PAC’s contributions under another’s name.  (ETH-

20) 

 

Violation of federal law.  On the fourth and fifth pages of his letter, Mr. Youngblood 

asserts that the Gideon Leadership PAC violated three provisions in federal campaign 

finance law: (1) contributing in the name of another, (2) failing to register and report as a 

political committee with FEC, and (3) not segregating funds it had received from 

corporations from funds that it donated to federal candidates and committees.  (ETH-20 – 

ETH-21)  For your reference, those alleged violations are described in more detail in an 

attached memo from the Commission’s Political Committee and Lobbyist Registrar, 

Michael Dunn.  (ETH-122 – ETH-124) 

 

Violation of legislative ethics law.  Mr. Youngblood urges the Commission to evaluate 

whether Sara Gideon’s “use of her state PAC to violate federal law conforms with the 

requirement in the Legislative Code of Ethics that legislators must abide by ‘high moral 

and ethical standards.’”  (ETH-21)  
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Response by Sara Gideon 

Sara Gideon provided a letter-response through her attorneys Benjamin K. Grant of the 

McTeague Higbee law firm in Topsham, Maine and Perkins Coie, LLP in Washington, 

D.C.  (ETH-116 – ETH-121)  She states that she believed her payments and the PAC’s 

reimbursements were permissible (ETH-116), which is why her PAC reported all of the 

reimbursements in its campaign finance reports.  (ETH-119)  She was unaware of even 

an appearance of any violation.  (ETH-121)  Once she was alerted to possible compliance 

issues, she disgorged the funds to the U.S. Department of Treasury.  (Id.)  She denies 

involvement in any “scheme” to give in the name of another, and points to the lack of any 

bad motive or substantial harm to the public.  (ETH-120) 

 

Sara Gideon argues that the four federal contributions are outside the scope of the 

Commission’s jurisdiction, as defined in 21-A M.R.S. § 1011.  (ETH-117)  She also 

contends that Mr. Youngblood’s request has not stated a “violation of legislative ethics” 

that the Commission is authorized to investigate.  (ETH-117 – ETH-118) 

 

Analysis and Recommendation by Commission Staff 

 

The Commission staff recommends against conducting any investigation or taking other 

action in response to Mr. Youngblood’s request, for the reasons below. 

 

Standards for Conducting an Investigation 

The Commission is authorized to conduct an investigation “if the reasons stated for the 

request show sufficient grounds for believing that a violation may have occurred.”  (21-A 

M.R.S. § 1003(2)) (ETH-9)  If the preliminary facts suggest little likelihood of a 

campaign finance violation, the Commission staff typically recommends against an 

investigation. 

 

Contributions in the Name of Another 

The State of Maine (like many other jurisdictions) forbids making a contribution in the 

name of another person or allowing one’s name to be used in the making of such a 
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contribution.  (21-A M.R.S. § 1004(3)(A) & (B)) (ETH-10)  Violations of this type are 

rarely identified in Maine elections, but they are discovered in other states with some 

regularity.  The typical pattern is that a contributor wishes to give more to a candidate 

than is allowed by law, so the contributor gives money to close family, friends, or 

employees to contribute to the candidate.  This is inherently deceptive conduct in which 

the true source of the funds wishes to remain hidden, so the contributions are made and 

reported in the name of an intermediary or conduit.  A one-page summary of four 

examples is attached.  (ETH-125) 

 

In the opinion of the Commission staff, the Gideon Leadership PAC is distinguishable 

from these cases in one important respect.  The Gideon Leadership PAC clearly intended 

to report making contributions in its own name by reimbursing Sara Gideon.  The six 

relevant expenditure entries from the Gideon Leadership PAC’s campaign finance reports 

are copied below: 

(ETH-31, ETH-35, ETH-38, ETH-50, ETH-60, ETH-64)   
 

In the staff’s view, the facts and evidence presented in this matter do not support a 

conclusion that the Gideon Leadership PAC engaged in the deceptive conduct that the 

Legislature sought to prohibit in 21-A M.R.S. § 1004(3).  In its campaign finance reports, 

the PAC disclosed that it, not Sara Gideon, was the source of the contributions.   

For this reason, we recommend against conducting a campaign finance investigation into 

this allegation. 
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We acknowledge that the financial reporting by the Gideon Leadership PAC should have 

been more detailed with respect to three of the federal contributions (the first, fifth and 

sixth items in the array of expenditures on the previous page).  PACs are required to 

identify the names of “all candidates” and “all political committees” supported by the 

PAC.  (21-A M.R.S. §§ 1060(1) & (2))  The entry for the October 28, 2015 expenditure 

does not indicate that it was a reimbursement for a contribution to Cain for Congress, and 

the entry for the October 12, 2016 expenditure does not indicate it was a reimbursement 

for a contribution to the federal account of the Maine Democratic Party.  The PAC 

described the purpose of the July 25, 2016 expenditure as “Reimbursement for MDP 

Contribution,” but the acronym may not convey to members of the public that this was a 

contribution to the federal account of the Maine Democratic Party.  We cannot find any 

reason to fault, however, the Gideon Leadership PAC’s reporting of the reimbursements 

to Sara Gideon for the contributions to the Maine-based PACs (the House Democratic 

Campaign Committee or the Golden Leadership Fund). 

 

The financial reporting by the House Democratic Campaign Committee and the Golden 

Leadership Fund would have been clearer if Sara Gideon had informed them that she was 

acting as an intermediary and that the funds she was donating originated with her 

leadership PAC, and not from her personal funds.  Unlike campaign finance law 

regarding contributions to candidates, there is no legal requirement that an intermediary 

communicate to a recipient PAC or BQC the source of the contribution.  Nevertheless, 

the failure to communicate this information can cause confusion about the actual 

contributor to a PAC or BQC, as it has in this case. 

 

Lack of Jurisdiction Over Contributions to Federal Candidates and Committees 

In addition, the Commission staff believes there is a jurisdictional barrier to investigating 

the contributions to Cain for Congress and the MDP federal account.  Contributions to 

federal candidates and federal political committees are governed by the U.S. Code, Title 

52, sections 30101-30126, and Title 11 of the Code of Federal Regulations.  The FEC has 

developed procedures and guidance to make sure that contributions to federal candidates 

and political committees are disclosed clearly for the benefit of the public.  Accordingly, 
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the Maine Legislature decided that: “The [Ethics] commission does not have jurisdiction 

over financial activities to influence the nomination or election of candidates for federal 

office.”  (21-A M.R.S. § 1011) (ETH-12)  If there is a rationale for investigating the 

Gideon Leadership PAC’s contributions to Cain for Congress and the MDP federal 

account, the investigation should be conducted by the FEC, which would apply federal 

law, guidance and precedent to determine if the system of federal campaign finance 

disclosure was undermined. 

 

Legislative Ethics Violation 

Mr. Youngblood urges the Commission to consider whether Rep. Gideon’s “use of her 

State PAC to violate federal law conforms with the direction in the Legislative Code of 

Ethics to abide by ‘high moral and ethical standards.’”  The Legislative Code of Ethics is 

a statement of ethics adopted by each Legislature at the beginning of the First Regular 

Session.  The most recent version available is attached, for your reference.  (ETH-126) 

 

The Commission does not have the statutory authority to investigate allegations of 

violations of the Legislative Code of Ethics.  Such investigations would be solely under 

the jurisdiction of the legislative body of which the Legislator is a member. 

 

The Commission’s jurisdiction to consider complaints of legislative conduct is time-

limited and extends only to violations listed in 1 M.R.S. §§ 1014 & 1015 (conflicts of 

interest, unduly influencing a state agency, abuse of office or position, contracting with a 

state agency without competitive bidding, or accepting contributions from a lobbyist or 

client during session).  (ETH-5 – ETH-8)  Mr. Youngblood’s complaint fails to allege 

any specific violation of section 1014 or 1015 and concerns conduct that occurred more 

than three years ago.  Therefore, the Commission staff believes the Commission does not 

have the statutory jurisdiction to initiate an investigation of a violation of legislative 

ethics. 
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Federal Campaign Finance Law 

As recognized by Mr. Youngblood, the Commission does not have jurisdiction to 

investigate whether Sara Gideon or the Gideon Leadership PAC violated federal 

campaign finance laws.  Those issues will presumably be considered by the FEC in 

response to the complaint which Mr. Youngblood filed with that authority. 

 

Improving Commission Guidance on Reporting Contributions 

 

To the best of our knowledge, it is rare for a contributor to earmark or otherwise direct a 

contribution through an intermediary or conduit to a Maine PAC or ballot question 

committee (BQC).  Nevertheless, the Commission staff believes the best practice in these 

situations is for the recipient PAC or BQC to report the original person that provided the 

funds as the contributor – rather than the intermediary or conduit. 

 

To provide better guidance on this reporting issue, we propose inserting the following 

language in the PAC/BQC Guidebook for the 2020 elections: 

All contributions that are earmarked or otherwise directed through an 

intermediary or conduit to a PAC or BQC are considered to be contributions 

from that person to the PAC or BQC.  The intermediary or conduit shall 

inform the recipient PAC or BQC of the name of the person who originally 

provided the contribution.  In campaign finance reports, the PAC or BQC 

shall disclose that original source as the contributor, rather than the 

intermediary or conduit. 

 

In previous election years, we have included similar language in our guidebooks for 

candidates, based on the following language in the contribution limits statute that applies 

to contributions to candidates: 

For the purposes of the limitations imposed by this section, all contributions 

made by a person, either directly or indirectly, on behalf of a particular 

candidate, that are in any way earmarked or otherwise directed through an 

intermediary or conduit to the candidate are considered to be contributions 
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from that person to the candidate. The intermediary or conduit shall report 

the original source and the intended recipient of the contribution to the 

commission and to the intended recipient. 

(21-A M.R.S. § 1015(4)) (ETH-12)  There is no similar language in Maine campaign 

finance law concerning contributions made through an intermediary or conduit to a PAC 

or BQC.  However, the statutory prohibition against making a contribution in the name of 

another and the requirement that PACs and BQCs accurately report the source of their 

contributions provide sufficient support for the staff’s proposed guidance. 

 

Thank you for your consideration of this memo.  
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MEMORANDUM 

To: Commission 
From: Michael J. Dunn, Political Committee and Lobbyist Registrar  
Date: October 18, 2019 
Re: Summary of Mr. Youngblood’s FEC complaint against Ms. Gideon and her PAC  

INTRODUCTION 

The purpose of this memorandum is to summarize the Complaint filed by Mr. Edward 

Youngblood (hereinafter, “Mr. Youngblood”) against Ms. Sara Gideon and the Gideon 

Leadership PAC (hereinafter, “Ms. Gideon,” “PAC,” and collectively, the “Respondents”) now 

pending before the Federal Election Commission (hereinafter, “FEC”).  This Memorandum does 

not offer an opinion on the merits of the Complaint or provide any analysis by the Commission 

staff.     

ALLEGED FEDERAL LAW VIOLATIONS 

The Complaint alleges the following three (3) violations.   

I. The Respondents violated the federal prohibition on giving in the name of another.   

Federal law prohibits a person from making “a contribution in the name of another person 

or [to] knowingly permit his name to be used to effect such a contribution.”  52 U.S.C. § 30122.  

A person who gives money, which was provided by another person (the original source), without 

disclosing the original source of the funds to the recipient is deemed to have made a contribution 

in the name of another.  11 C.F.R. § 110.4(b)(2)(i).  Additionally, it is unlawful to “knowingly 

help or assist another person in making” such a contribution.  Id. at § 110.4(b)(1)(iii).   

Here, the allegations are that on or about 9/30/2015, 6/13/2016, 7/11/2016, and 

10/03/2016, Ms. Gideon made contributions to Emily Cain for Congress and to the federal 

account of the Maine Democratic Party, totaling $2,750.1  Additionally, on or about 10/28/2015, 

6/1/2016,2 7/25/2016, and 10/12/2016, the PAC reimbursed Ms. Gideon a total of $2,750 for 

making the contributions to Cain for Congress and the federal account of the Maine Democratic 

1 Cain for Congress received $1,250, and the Maine Democratic Party received $1,500.   
2 The PAC’s State filing indicates the reimbursement was made on 6/1/2016, but the Cain for Congress filing 
indicates the contribution was received on 6/13/2016.   

ETH-122









LEGISLATIVE CODE OF ETHICS 

Legislative service is one of democracy's worthiest pursuits. A Maine Legislator is charged with 

civility and responsible conduct inside and outside of the State House commensurate with the 

trust placed in that Legislator by the electorate. 

In a free government, a Legislator is entrusted with the security, safety, health, prosperity, 

respect and general well-being of those the Legislator serves and with whom the Legislator 

serves. 

To work well, government requires a bond of trust and respect between citizens and their 

Legislators. With such a trust, high moral and ethical standards producing the public's 

confidence, with the reduction to a minimum of any conflict between private interests and 

official duties, should be observed. 

No Maine Legislators will accept any employment that will impair their independence and 

integrity of judgment nor will they exercise their position of trust to secure unwarranted 

privileges for themselves or for others. The Maine Legislator will be ever mindful of the ordinary 

citizen who might otherwise be unrepresented and will endeavor conscientiously to pursue the 

highest standards of legislative conduct inside and outside of the State House. 

Adopted by the 100th Legislature 

Amended by the 127th Legislature 

ETH - 126ETH-126
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